
 

- 44 - 

 

 REFERENCE 1 
Approved 4/10/13 

WINDHAM BOARD OF EDUCATION 

WILLIMANTIC, CONNECTICUT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION BUSINESS MEETING MINUTES 

March 13, 2013 

 

BOARD PRESENT:  Chair Dr. Sewall, Vice-chair Mrs. Collins, Secretary Mrs. Osuba, Mrs. Lambert, Dr. 

Switchenko, Ms. Tinker, Mr. Desaulniers, Mr. French 

BOARD ABSENT:  Mr. Adamo 

ADMINISTRATION   

  PRESENT: Superintendent Ms. Ortiz, Deputy Superintendent Ms. England, Assistant 

Superintendent Ms. Barker-Jones, Communications Officer Ms. Markey, Directors 

Mrs. Banks and Mr. Nelson  

STUDENT  

REPRESENTATIVES:  No one 

OTHERS PRESENT:   Special Master Dr. Adamowski, general public, staff; administrators, news media 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 Dr. Sewall called the March 13, 2013, Board of Education business meeting to order at 7:06 P.M. in the 

Windham High School Library Media Center.   

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 Mr. French led the Board and the public in the reciting of the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

MINUTES 

February 13, 2013, Business meeting (Ref. 1) 

February 27, 2013, Workshop meeting (Ref. 2) 

March 6, 2013, special meeting and public budget forum (Ref. 3) 

 Dr. Sewall asked for any additions or corrections.  Hearing none, the minutes were accepted as submitted. 

 

 Dr. Sewall asked for and received agreement by Board members to move Student Recognition up on the 

agenda. 

Student Recognition 

 Ms. Jennifer Vowles was present with members of her fifth grade class which is part of the Compañeros 

dual language program at North Windham School.  The students had an idea to create a song, “It’s All Math 

Baby”.  They made a music video and won a national contest on the radio winning $1500 for a classroom 

makeover.  The students learned that by working together, they can accomplish anything.  The video was 

shown to the Board and the students were congratulated. 

 Middle School student, Cheyenne Shannon, attended tonight’s meeting with Ms. Virginia Ereshena, who 

is in charge of the Lions Club Peace poster contest in the Windham area, and her art teacher Ms. Kim Begin.  

This year’s theme for the poster contest was Imagine Peace to promote understandings throughout the world 

with children.  Cheyenne won first place at the Middle School; then she went on to place first in the 

Windham region, which is the largest region in the state, and then placed third in the state contest.  

Cheyenne was congratulated. 



 

- 45 - 

 

 Windham High School DECA students Mitchell Stevens, Shane Vertefeuille, Zachary Quamme, Emily 

Grogan, Greg Bright and Mike Mohammed were recognized for their DECA successes.  Students recently 

participated in the state conference and many will participate in April at the national conference in Anaheim, 

California.  Mitchell thanked the Board for recognizing their achievements.  DECA advisor, Stefani 

McClure, said that Windham High School was one of the smallest chapters competing in the state and five 

Windham students won first place, which is quite an accomplishment.  They all were congratulated. 

 Kendall Marquez was recognized for breaking a Windham High School forty-four year record held by 

Board of Education member, Dr. Daniel Switchenko, for basketball points scored.  Dr. Switchenko 

congratulated Kendall; his parents; and his grandfather, John Risley, who was Dr. Switchenko’s Windham 

High School basketball coach when the record was set.  Kendall’s basketball coach, Bill Strand, could not 

attend, but it was noted that Coach Strand served as Dr. Switchenko’s assistant at ECSU.  Ms. Ortiz 

presented Kendall with a plaque to recognize his accomplishment. 

 

POTENTIAL SUPPORT FROM THE WINDHAM REGIONAL ARTS COUNCIL 

 The following members of the Windham Regional Arts Council Board of Directors spoke about the 

importance of the arts in the community and school system and providing funding within the district for 

these programs:  Windham Regional Arts Council President Bette MacDonald, Lydia Rudolph, Shirley 

Sheathem, and Gordon MacDonald.  R. W. Wolf could not attend and submitted a statement in support of 

the arts which was read by Ms. MacDonald. 

 Ms. MacDonald asked the Board how the Windham Regional Arts Council could help the Board of 

Education sustain and expand art and music in the school curriculum.  Dr. Sewall thanked them for 

attending and will look for ways to work together. 

 

PUBLIC DIALOGUE 

 Mitchell Stevens, Columbia, President for the second year of WHS DECA, said that DECA participants 

strongly believe that the business program is essential to the education of students at WHS and would fit in 

with the Arts & Humanities Academy.  He said that for DECA to thrive as a club at the High School, it is 

necessary to have the marketing education program.  Students will attend the scheduling meeting on Friday.   

 Stefani McClure, marketing education teacher and DECA advisor, spoke about the importance of the 

marketing program and how it relates to the Arts & Humanities Academy.  She chronicled the fifty-year 

history of DECA at Windham High School which began in 1963 and highlighted the academic success and 

the countless awards received by students throughout the years.  Ms. McClure said that students learn 

marketing and business skills which encompass and relate to the pathways in the Arts & Humanities 

program. 

 Ken Folan, Windham, spoke about the importance of the DECA program.  He said the Arts & Humanities 

Academy cross utilizes the abilities of programming that DECA provides and invokes the utilization of the 

arts.  He said that the DECA program has brought success to Windham as a school district and pride to the 

students and it is a program that belongs in the Program of Studies.  He said that the Board needs to look at 

the town, the school system and its children.  He asked the Board to stand behind the superintendent and 

curriculum specialist and challenge Dr. Adamowski.  The legislation that is written does not give Dr. 

Adamowski the power to change the programs that are bright spots in the district.  Mr. Folan spoke with Ms. 

Barker-Jones who will meet with him, students, the advisor and parents.  Mr. Folan would welcome the 

presence of Dr. Adamowski at this meeting.  He asked that it be held later in the afternoon so that parents 

would be able to attend. 

 James Flores, Willimantic, spoke about the safety of students.  He counted 71 students from kindergarten 

to grade five on a bus with one driver.  Two years ago 85% of the parents wanted uniforms and the Board 



 

- 46 - 

 

said it wanted more information.  He asked that the Board address the issue of school uniforms quickly, and 

said that parents are asking for uniforms for students.   

 Alma Negron, Windham, thanked the parents and community for their support.  She said that we are part 

of the School Governance Council for Windham Center.  She said that the community and parents are here 

and they want uniforms and are trying to make their school better.  Ms. Negron said that they have been told 

that parents have the power. 

 Agnes Bernard, Windham, said that students feel more comfortable in their environment when wearing 

uniforms and are ready to learn. 

 Dr. Sewall said that the uniform policy is on tonight’s agenda and will be discussed. 

 Tom Drewry, Willimantic, WFT, spoke about the decline in the fall to winter NWEA-MAP assessment 

scores among ninth and tenth graders.  He said that overall students were significantly less engaged in the 

test the second time that it was given.  Mr. Drewry served as a proxy for both test sessions at the high 

school.  He said that what’s been said about NWEA testing has been accepted at face value.  Mr. Drewry 

said that the data obtained from the test results are very general and do not sufficiently drive instruction, and 

it is not known the extent of how the test aligns with our curriculum.  He said that once again Windham has 

rushed into an initiative without a true debate occurring.  Mr. Drewry commented that there is little 

knowledge about test materials and structure; and students, teachers, principals and parents will be further 

demoralized.  He questioned the Board policy regarding the three minute speaking limit.  He said that it 

warrants looking into because he found the policy to say three-five minutes earlier in the year and now it 

says there is a three-minute limit. 

 Agnes Bernard, Windham, was asked to speak again by Dr. Sewall since she did not get to speak for three 

minutes earlier in the meeting.  Said that these are challenging times in the community and that is why 

people want the uniforms.  Ms. Bernard said that there is community support for uniforms.  Students feel 

more comfortable wearing uniforms, are ready to learn when they arrive at school, and look more 

professional in their appearance.  She said that uniforms are a practical budget friendly option that is already 

implemented in other schools and it makes sense to have the same policy in all the schools. 

 Jose M. Colón (James Flores translated), Windham Center, has a child at Windham Center School who 

has been bullied for three years.  The bus his child rides is overcrowded and bigger kids pick on the younger 

kids.  There is a group of kids that sit in the back of the bus and no one is allowed in the back of the bus if 

they are not in the club.  Mr. Colón has gone to the school and has been told that nothing can be done.  He is 

asking who will respond to him to help his child on the school bus. 

 Ms. Ortiz asked him to make an appointment to meet with her. 

 Mary Gallucci, Willimantic, said she is grateful for the words she heard tonight from citizens and 

neighbors and for the students who were recognized at tonight’s meeting.  She said that inspiring ideas about 

education do not come from the Board of Education or Special Master.  Ms. Gallucci said that people are 

saying want they want to see happen in the schools and are upset with the budget cuts that have been going 

on for years.  She said that the STEM curriculum promoted by Dr. Adamowski is mostly an application of 

technology and standardized fare with little creativity in the curriculum; however, people in Windham want 

a comprehensive education.  Ms. Gallucci said that there is a letter to the editor in tonight’s Chronicle 

inviting Dr. Adamowski to meet with parents and students.  He would then learn that people aren’t happy to 

have the budget balanced especially on the backs of children.  Preschool costs money now for some parents 

and buses are being cut.  The school calendar is different from surrounding towns; and therefore, families 

cannot participate in camps and other opportunities offered during spring vacation time.  She still feels that 

30% of the budget is too much for central office.  Ms. Gallucci questioned the value of teaching Chinese 

which was not a choice made by consulting parents and said that every student in Windham should be taught 

Spanish.  Ms. Gallucci feels that the NWEA testing has not been implemented properly, and she questioned 



 

- 47 - 

 

using CMT scores to place children in the gifted program.  She asked why there are four teachers on the 

gifted team and the rest of the teams only have three teachers.     

 Dawn Niles, North Windham, said that she supports the petition presented by Alma Negron regarding 

student uniforms and totally agrees with having school uniforms throughout the district.  She was enthused 

to meet Ms. Negron and feels that it was incredible that she collected 300 signatures in such a short time.  

Ms. Niles thanked the Board for putting uniforms on the agenda and asked that they consider the uniform 

policy.  She said that she is concerned with student safety and the transportation policy because of the lack 

of sidewalks and heavy traffic areas by North Windham School, Windham Center School and the new 

STEM School.  She believes that having students walk is a great concept but their safety must come first.  

She asked the Board to reconsider cuts to the budget because it is important to have well-rounded students. 

Programs like DECA and arts programs are necessary for students to become involved adults. 

 Mary Lou DeVivo, Windham, asked about the STEM lottery.  She referred to the document that went to 

the Board in November 2012.  She said that choice seats are mentioned but there is no explanation what it 

means and it is unclear who gets these choice seats.  Even though EASTCONN will follow state protocols 

and guidelines for the lottery, she couldn’t find them anywhere online.  Ms. DeVivo said that there are many 

questions being asked by people and this opens the town up to a lot of criticism if the process isn’t fully 

explained.  She asked that the lottery be opened up to community members allowing them to watch how it is 

done.  Ms. DeVivo said that she heard about STEAM schools which include science, technology, 

engineering, arts and math.  She was appreciative that the choice fair was held for eighth grade students and 

families but felt it was done much too late in the year   

 Ms. Ortiz responded that EASTCONN will conduct the lottery and a definite date has not yet been set.  

She clarified that the Board did not approve the operations plan in November.  At that time, a presentation 

was made to the Board.  Dr. Adamowski explained that the operations plan is being updated and will be 

resubmitted to the Bureau of Magnet Schools at the State Department of Education, which is the approving 

authority for magnet schools in the state.  He said that all RESCs in the state are obligated to conduct 

magnet school lotteries following a set of rules that the State Bureau of Magnet Schools compels the RESCs 

to follow.   

 Kevin Hoxie, Willimantic, spoke about the budget.  He says that he sees money going for administration 

and central office but no extra money going to the classrooms for supplies.  He asked how can he vote to 

approve a budget when his son is not receiving an education.  Mr. Hoxie said that a town meeting was held 

to vote on the Natchaug roof but people who work third shift and the elderly couldn’t attend.  He said a band 

aid is being put on the Natchaug roof.  He thanked John French for looking at the transportation budget and 

making cuts that have to be made somewhere.  He said that teachers, who are teaching our children, need to 

be taken care of.  He will not vote for a board of education budget unless something changes.  

 Susan Johnson, Willimantic, thanked Board members for their hard work.  She said that she supports 

school uniforms.  Once the uniform policy is put in place, it will help create cohesiveness among students.  

She also said that it is important to continue to provide arts programs and sports, as well as transportation 

for the students.  She explained that there is a movement with alliance district boards of education to include 

alliance district money in the ECS grant, and she would like to work with people in Windham to promote 

this idea.  She invited Board members to attend the hearings that will be held on school based health centers. 

 Rick Swart, Windham, spoke about school uniforms.  He said that he thought school uniforms were 

supposed to be the decision of each School Governance Council.  He asked if all of the signatures on the 

petition are parent signatures of students in Windham schools.  He asked who conducted the previous 

uniform survey that indicated over 80% of the parents wanted uniforms.  He asked when it was taken and if 

uniforms have made a difference at the Middle School.  He also asked about the lottery process and sibling 

preference.  Mr. Swart understands that, because of sibling preference, if a family has three children in the 



 

- 48 - 

 

lottery, they have a better chance to all get into the school than his son who only has one application in the 

lottery.  He questioned what Mr. Wihbey said at the Magnet School open house regarding sibling preference. 

 Dr. Sewall said that the operating plan calls for sibling preference only for kindergarten students.  Dr. 

Adamowski further clarified that if an older child who attends the Magnet School has a younger sibling, the 

child would be given sibling preference for entrance into kindergarten in the future. 

 Lorraine McDevitt, Willimantic, said that all town boards need to be transparent to avoid rumors.  She has 

advocated for years for school uniforms because it allows students more time to concentrate on their studies 

without worrying about the fashion trend.  She hopes that the policy goes forward and is approved.   

 Dr. Sewall said he received an e-mail from Mr. O’Brien from Bolivia Street and Ms. Wright from Pleasant 

Street supporting the uniform policy, and an e-mail from Ms. Dupuis from Windham Center who does not 

support the policy. 

 He also received a letter from Community Care Services thanking Windham High School students for 

participation in the “All You Need is Love” project in support of children in the state waiting for foster 

homes. 

 

REPORTS 

Superintendent’s Report 

Student Recognition took place earlier in the meeting. 

 Ms. Ortiz thanked Mrs. Susan Johnson for recognizing Board members for their work and representation 

of our community on behalf of the students.  March is Board appreciation month and Ms. Ortiz also 

recognized members for their dedication and hard work. 

 

NWEA report 

 Ms. Barker-Jones provided the Board with an overview of the NWEA-MAP assessment results.  The 

assessment was given to students in October and January and is in its initial year of implementation.  Spring 

testing will take place in May.  Ms. Barker-Jones showed graphs of fall and winter scores for grades three, 

four, five, six, seven, eight, nine and ten reading and math scores with noted comparisons.  She reviewed the 

next steps and answered Board members’ questions.  A final report for this year’s NWEA-MAP assessments 

will be given to the Board in July. 

 

Committee Reports 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 Ms. Tinker reported that the committee has been working on the 2013-2014 budget, which is based on per 

pupil expenditure.  On Friday it will be transmitted to the Town and on April 3, the budget will be presented 

to the Town’s Board of Finance. 

  

School Planning and Design Committee 

 Mrs. Lambert reported that the committee discussed the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) in reference to 

the Facilities Master Plan (FMP).  The condition of the High School roof was discussed and committee 

members would like to move forward with the Town regarding replacement of the roof in the immediate 

future.  Mrs. Lambert would like to e-mail Neal Beets regarding the roof replacement for the High School.  

The Middle School roof will need some repairs to the flashing which was not properly sealed in between 

sections.  A walk through will be done with an engineer to assess the repairs needed.  There was discussion 

at tonight’s meeting regarding the process for replacing the High School roof and repairing the Middle 

School roof.  There was discussion about having Friar develop the ED049 or putting out an RFP or RFQ for 

a Project Manager for Phase I of the FMP which could include the ED049 for the High School roof.  The 

School Planning and Design Committee will review these processes to determine which would best suit the 



 

- 49 - 

 

needs of the district.  Mrs. Lambert also reported that Sweeney School expenses were put in a FMP column 

in the CIP contingent on being part of the FMP.  North Windham and Windham Center schools have one 

well at each school which is in violation of legislation.  Two new wells are needed at each site and Mr. 

Donaldson will oversee this project.  Mrs. Lambert brought forward two contracts from Friar; one is for 

$8000 to provide a study at the Middle School for installing air conditioning as part of Commissioner’s 

Network plan and the other contract is for $23,500 as a continuation of the initial contract to cover the cost 

to provide support at future meetings, presentations and referendums.  Both of these contracts will be 

covered by State funds per Dr. Adamowski. 

Motion of Mr. French, seconded by Mrs. Collins, that the Board of Education add to the agenda the 

approval to accept the recommendation of the School Planning and Design committee on the ED049 

for the High School roof. 

 The motion is unanimously approved. 

 Motion to accept the recommendation of the School Planning and Design Committee on the ED049 

for the High School roof was unanimously approved. 

 

Executive Committee 

 Dr. Sewall said that the committee did not formally meet but committee members had input on revising 

the uniform policy on tonight’s agenda as a first reading. 

 

Ad hoc Transportation Policy Committee 

 Mr. French reported that he has researched the busing issue at Windham Heights.  Mr. Snow at the bus 

company and the school principal came up with the plan to add another bus to reduce the overcrowding 

issue which has been put in place.   

 

ACTION ITEMS 

2013-2014 Superintendent’s Recommended Budget (Ref. 4) 

 The general fund budget for 2013-2014 of $43,758,263 for 2013-2014 is an increase of $561,557 over the 

2012-2013 general fund budget.  Per pupil allocation will be affected by students who are accepted to attend 

the Magnet School. 

 The budget is unanimously approved. 

 

Capital Improvement Plan (Ref. 5) 

 There was some discussion and questions were answered by Mr. Donaldson regarding the Capital 

Improvement Plan.  Mrs. Lambert thanked Mr. Donaldson for his assistance with the plan. 

 The Capital Improvement Plan as presented and brought forward by the School Planning and 

Design Committee is unanimously approved. 

 

Connecticut Healthy Food Certification (Ref. 6) 

 Motion of Mrs. Collins, seconded by Mrs. Lambert, that the Board of Education approve the 

continued participation of Windham Public Schools in the Healthy Food Certification program from 

July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014, certifying that all food items sold to students will meet the 

Connecticut Nutrition Standards. 

 The motion is unanimously approved. 

 

Approval of appointments 

 Motion of Mrs. Lambert, seconded by Dr. Switchenko, that the Board of Education approve the 

following appointments: 



 

- 50 - 

 

1. Curt Hayes to the position of Grade 5 Teacher at Windham Center School effective March 4, 2013.  

Replacement. 

2. Yiming He to the position of Mandarin Teacher at Windham Middle School effective April 1, 2013.  

Replacement. 

 The motion is unanimously approved. 

 

First Reading of Uniform policy (Ref. 7) 

 Dr. Sewall said that this is the first reading of the Uniform policy which will be voted on at the April 10, 

2013, Board meeting.  There was discussion and it was decided to include the second reading of the policy 

on the agenda of the next workshop meeting which will be held on April 2, 2013, due to the spring recess.  

Discussion also took place on whether school uniforms are the decision of the Board of Education or the 

School Governance Councils.  There also was discussion regarding obtaining parental input by doing a 

survey.  A survey was done two years ago and the majority of parents wanted school uniforms.  Mr. French, 

Mr. Desaulniers, Dr. Switchenko and Mrs. Lambert were in favor of doing a survey; Mrs. Collins, Mrs. 

Osuba and Ms. Tinker were not in favor of doing a survey.  A survey will be sent home to parents of all the 

schools with results obtained prior to the April 2, 2013, meeting. 

 

Special Master’s Report 

 Dr. Adamowski explained that school budgets will have to be recalculated this summer once the number 

of students attending the Magnet School from each school is determined.  Revenue adjustments also may 

have to be made in June based on the Governor’s recommended proposal which may be adjusted by the 

legislature.  He explained that the DECA program was not included last year by either design committee in 

the design specifications for the two high school academies.  At that time, DECA was more than likely 

perceived as a business program which didn’t fit in either STEM or Arts & Humanities academies.  

However, he said, that convincing argument was made by Ms. McClure at tonight’s meeting that relates this 

program to the Arts & Humanities Academy.  He said that a program that is successful should be preserved.  

However, the conversation should be with the Arts and Humanities Academy principal and the School 

Governance Council and not with the Board.  A decision on how to fund the program would have to be 

made which is a school design decision.  He reminded the Board that the April workshop is on the arts and a 

comprehensive plan is needed for this area.  He also corrected a statement by an earlier speaker that the 

preschool has been expanded this year and has not been cut.  He was pleased with the NWEA report which 

was not perfect; however, this is a pilot year and the program is off to an encouraging start in spite of being 

implemented late in the fall.  Dr. Adamowski said that NWEA testing is used throughout the state and 

districts have found that it is very predictive and is the most important tool for school data teams to use.  

The Magnet School has 600 applications for 200 slots which sends a message that the hope for a high 

performing school attracts parents.  Dr. Adamowski said that there is a sense of urgency in making progress 

in the development of new plans for district schools such as Montessori, dual language and extended year 

choice options. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

 Motion by Mrs. Lambert, seconded by Mr. French, that the Board meeting adjourn at 10:26 P.M. 

 On the motion:  Motion is unanimously approved. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

       Mrs. Luz Osuba, Secretary 

 


